

## City Council Building Chattanooga, Tennessee

## **COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES**

December 11, 2018 6:00 PM

## **CALL TO ORDER**

Council Chairman Ken Smith called the meeting to order with Vice-Chairman Erskine Oglesby and Councilpersons Carol Berz, Anthony Byrd, Russell Gilbert, Chip Henderson, Darrin Ledford and Jerry Mitchell. Phil Noblett, City Attorney, and Nicole Gwyn, Council Clerk, were also present. Councilwoman Demetrus Coonrod was not present this meeting.

#### PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Councilwoman Berz led the Assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.

## APPROVAL OF LAST MINUTES

**On motion of Councilman Henderson** and seconded by Councilman Ledford, the minutes of the last meeting (December 4, 2018) were approved as published.

ORDINANCES – FINAL READING: (NONE)

ORDINANCES - FIRST READING:

2018-208 Josh Barr District No. 1

## Agenda Item VI(a):

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 215 PEAK STREET, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL ZONE TO R-T/Z RESIDENTIAL TOWNHOUSE/ZERO LOT LINE ZONE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

Councilman Henderson informed the Council that the Applicant has requested to withdraw this item. Therefore, **Councilman Henderson moved** to withdraw, seconded by Councilman Ledford. Upon no further comments or questions, the motion carried.

**ACTION: WITHDRAWN** 

2018-205 LRBB, LLC % Ben Hagaman Planning Version District No. 2

#### **ORDINANCE #13404**

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 109 HARTMAN STREET AND 205 AND 207 FOREST AVENUE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM R-3 RESIDENTIAL ZONE AND R-4 SPECIAL ZONE TO E-RM-3 URBAN EDGE RESIDENTIAL MULTI-UNIT ZONE MAXIMUM HEIGHT THREE STORIES, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

Chairman Smith confirmed that there was no Opposition here tonight on this item. The Applicant, or their representative, was present. Per the request of Councilman Mitchell, John Bridger, Executive Director of Regional Planning, gave a briefing on this item instead of a full presentation. He discussed the Staff and Planning recommendations and noted that Opposition was present at the Planning Commission meeting and wanted clarification on the . He discussed the Planning Commission's recommendation to accept the rezone to E-RM-3 a maximum of six (6) units on this property. **Councilman Mitchell moved** to approve the Planning version. He was seconded by Councilman Ledford. The motion carried.

## ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

2018-217 MAP Engineers, LLC Planning Version District No. 4

#### **ORDINANCE #13405**

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 8206 AND 8210 APISON PIKE AND PART OF 4978 PATSY PLACE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM C-2 CONVENIENCE COMMERCIAL ZONE TO UGC URBAN GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

Chairman Smith confirmed that the Applicant was present, but there was no Opposition present tonight for this item. Therefore, Councilman Ledford asked Mr. Bridger to read the one (1) condition of this rezoning: *Pedestrian access must be maintained throughout the proposed development.* Upon no questions or comments, **Councilman Ledford moved** to approve, seconded by Councilman Mitchell. The motion carried.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

2018-209 <u>Doi Min H CAO</u> <u>Planning Version</u> District No. 7

## Agenda Item VI(d):

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 3401 AND 3403 CLIO AVENUE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL ZONE TO C-2 CONVENIENCE COMMERCIAL ZONE.

Vice-Chairman Oglesby requested a full presentation from Mr. Bridger. He informed the Council about the Applicant's request from R-1 to C-2 for parking lot expansion. He noted that there was no recent zoning history in this area, and that there was Opposition at the Planning Commission meeting. The Applicant, Mr. CAO, was present and given the opportunity to address the Council on his plans with this rezoning. Vice-Chairman Oglesby informed Mr. CAO of the community's desire to deny this rezoning. Therefore, **Vice-Chairman Oglesby moved** to deny, seconded by Councilman Gilbert. The motion carried.

ACTION: DENIED

2018-216 MAP Engineers, LLC Planning Version District No. 7

## Agenda Item VI(e):

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 405 AND 407 WEST 47TH STREET, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM R-3 RESIDENTIAL ZONE TO R-4 SPECIAL ZONE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

A hearing ensued on this item. Mr. Bridger made a presentation on Planning and Staff's recommendation to approve with conditions. He noted that Opposition was present at the Planning Commission meeting and that the Planning Commission recommended a meeting between the Applicant and the community.

## Applicant:

• William Smith – He and his wife founded the Chattanooga Thunder track team for youth and have seen success with two youths who ranked fourth and fifth in the nation. He owns the five (5) houses that include this rezoning request. He owns a total of six (6) homes in this neighborhood. He met with the one person he heard from in opposition to this.

#### Opposition:

Terry McCullough (Oak Hills) – He is the President of the Oak Hills Neighborhood Association. His association has not met with the Applicant. He spoke on the neighborhood's desire for residential only. He noted that the community already has a new community park, the Southside YFD center and The Bethlehem Center for workouts and/or recreation in this neighborhood. He noted that the community has concerns about not being involved with this rezoning until now.

<u>Rebuttal:</u> Mr. Smith informed the Council that he has been in this community since 2005. He has not received notification from the neighborhood association in opposition to this rezoning. He founded the Chattanooga Thunders track team and has seen three youths in his program go to college on track scholarships. He owns five houses in this community. The properties in question are directly behind homes that he already owns.

Vice-Chairman Oglesby proposed a meeting with him, Mr. Smith and Mr. McCullough either tonight after the Council meeting or any time within the next 48 hours in order to discuss this rezoning. Therefore, **Vice-Chairman Oglesby moved** to defer one (1) week to December 18, 2018. He was seconded by Councilman Byrd. The motion carried.

## ACTION: DEFERRED TO DECEMBER 18, 2018

2018-212 Aza Wintersieck Planning Version District No. 8

## Agenda Item VI(f):

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1785 OCOEE STREET, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL ZONE TO R-2 RESIDENTIAL ZONE.

Councilman Byrd informed the Council that there has been a request to withdraw this item. Therefore, **Councilman Byrd moved** to withdraw, seconded by Councilwoman Berz. The motion carried.

**ACTION: WITHDRAWN** 

2018-202 Tower Construction Company Planning Version District No. 8

On motion of Councilman Byrd and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

### **ORDINANCE #13406**

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE 2100 BLOCK OF EAST MAIN STREET, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM C-2 CONVENIENCE COMMERCIAL ZONE TO UGC URBAN GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

There was no Opposition present. The motion carried.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

On motion of Councilman Ledford and seconded by Councilman Byrd,

#### **ORDINANCE #13047**

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE II, DEFINITIONS BY ADDING A DEFINITION FOR FRATERNAL, PROFESSIONAL, OR HOBBY CLUBS, AND TO AMEND ARTICLE VIII, BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS FOR VARIANCES AND SPECIAL PERMITS, SECTION 38-568, POWERS, ETC. BOARD, HEARINGS BY ADDING SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS FOR FRATERNAL, PROFESSIONAL, OR HOBBY CLUBS.

Councilman Ledford mentioned that Councilman Gilbert had concerns during an earlier open meeting. Attorney Noblett confirmed that the revisions to this resolution had been made already. Upon no further questions or comments, the motion carried.

## ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

On motion of Councilman Ledford and seconded by Councilman Henderson,

## **ORDINANCE #13408**

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE IV, HEIGHT AND AREA EXCEPTIONS AND OTHER SPECIAL PERMITS, DIVISION 1, HEIGHT AND AREA EXCEPTIONS, SECTION 38-510, ACCESS TO COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, OR OTHER NON-RESIDENTIALLY ZONED PROPERTY TO THE R-3 RESIDENTIAL ZONE OR R-4 SPECIAL ZONE THAT IF DEVELOPED WITH NON-RESIDENTIAL USES THE R-3 RESIDENTIAL ZONE AND R-4 SPECIAL ZONE WILL BE CONSIDERED A NON-RESIDENTIAL ZONE FOR PURPOSES OF ACCESS ONLY.

Mr. Bridger gave a brief overview about access through R-4 for institutional purposes. Upon no further comments or question, the motion carried.

## ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

MR-2018-189 Troy and Amy Cox District No. 2

On motion of Councilman Mitchell and seconded by Councilman Ledford.

## **ORDINANCE #13409**

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING AND ABANDONING A SEWER EASEMENT LOCATED IN THE 700 BLOCK OF ASHLAND TERRACE, AS DETAILED ON THE ATTACHED MAP, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

MR-2018-182 Tacala TN Corp. % Mike Gray District No. 5

On motion of Councilman Gilbert and seconded by Councilman Byrd,

#### **ORDINANCE #13410**

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING AND ABANDONING A SEWER EASEMENT LOCATED IN THE 4400 BLOCK OF OAKWOOD DRIVE, AS DETAILED ON THE ATTACHED MAP, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

MR-2018-179
Ben Berry and Berry Engineers, LLC
District No. 7

On motion of Vice-Chairman Oglesby and seconded by Councilman Ledford,

#### **ORDINANCE #13411**

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING AND ABANDONING A SEWER EASEMENT LOCATED AT 801 AND 553 RIVERFRONT PARKWAY, AS DETAILED ON THE ATTACHED MAP, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

MR-2018-194 BC Holding, GP % John Coffelt District No. 7

On motion of Vice-Chairman Oglesby and seconded by Councilman Gilbert,

#### **ORDINANCE #13412**

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING AND ABANDONING A SEWER EASEMENT LOCATED AT 5530 TENNESSEE AVENUE AND 525 MCGREATH STREET, AS DETAILED ON THE ATTACHED MAP, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

**ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING** 

On motion of Councilman Byrd and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

#### **ORDINANCE #13413**

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING AND ABANDONING A FIVE (5') FOOT PORTION OF A SEWER EASEMENT LOCATED IN THE 800 BLOCK OF DOUGLAS STREET, AS DETAILED ON THE ATTACHED MAP, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

# ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

#### **RESOLUTIONS:**

On motion of Councilman Byrd and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

#### **RESOLUTION #29732**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT, IN SUBSTANTIALLY THE FORM ATTACHED, WITH SCULPTURE FIELDS AT MONTAGUE PARK, TO EXERCISE THE FIRST RIGHT OF REFUSAL ON THE PORTION OF THE PROPERTY AT 1800 POLK STREET, IDENTIFIED AS A PORTION OF TAX MAP NO. 156A-D-001, FOR THE OPTION AREA DEFINED IN THE GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT OF JUNE 6, 2012.

ACTION: ADOPTED

## Agenda Item VII(b):

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A PREMISES USE AGREEMENT, IN SUBSTANTIALLY THE FORM ATTACHED, WITH CHATTANOOGA RUGBY CLUB, INC., FOR THE USE OF A PORTION OF MONTAGUE FIELDS LOCATED AT 1151 E. 23<sup>RD</sup> STREET, IDENTIFIED AS A PORTION OF TAX MAP NO. 156A-D-001, FOR A TERM OF THREE (3) MONTHS, WITH NO RENEWAL OPTIONS, FOR THE AMOUNT OF \$1.00 PER TERM.

Councilman Byrd informed the Council that he has spoken to the man who hosts the Chattanooga Rugby tournaments and that there was a need for more information about the club. Therefore, **Councilman Byrd moved** to defer one (1) to December 18, 2018. He was seconded by Councilman Mitchell. The motion carried.

ACTION: DEFERRED TO DECEMBER 18, 2018

On motion of Councilman Gilbert and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

#### **RESOLUTION #29733**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT, IN SUBSTANTIALLY THE FORM ATTACHED, WITH THE FORGOTTEN CHILD FUND, INC. TO LEASE APPROXIMATELY 1,142 SQUARE FEET LOCATED AT 1715 E. MAIN STREET, IDENTIFIED AS TAX MAP NO. 156B-D-011, FOR A TERM OF ONE (1) YEAR, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE (3) ADDITIONAL TERMS OF ONE (1) YEAR EACH, FOR THE AMOUNT OF \$1.00 PER YEAR.

**ACTION: ADOPTED** 

2018-173 BKY Enterprises GP % Beason View Land Company District No. 1

#### **RESOLUTION #29734**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS PERMIT FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ON PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE 1000 BLOCK OF BEASON DRIVE.

reduce setbacks to position the homes closer to the street. Planning recommended the special exceptions permit. Councilman Henderson asked Mr. Bridger to confirm that a previous map showed 44 lots with two doors each (possible 88 doors) in this area.

## On behalf of the Applicant:

- John Osbeck (Dayton Blvd.) He and his partner thanked Councilman Henderson and Mr. Bridger for facilitating the community meeting. He bought a home with the intent of creating a community in a place formerly known for motorcycle gangs and vandalism. There were also evidence of poachers, satanic symbols and ATV tracks in this area prior to their property purchases. They formed Beason View Land Company to beatify the area and. As a result of their cleanup, developers began contacting them. They believe that single-family is best for this area.
- **Donna Shephard** She is the engineer for the company. She distributed copies of their proposed development plan to the Council. She noted that although 88 doors is an option, they have voluntarily reduced to 51 single-family units and three (3) community lots, which is 10 lots less than what was presented to the Planning Commission. She informed the Council that they have overlayed the road alignment and added duplexes. She also noted that there are two (2) acres on the slope. Their final plan shows hatched areas/greenspace. There were 64 adjacent property owners present at the community meeting, with three (3) of those in support.

#### On behalf of the Opposition:

- **John Mossier** (Pineville Rd.) Drainage is an issue on Pineville Road already, with roads washing out. The City has only installed retainer blocks. He believes that 51 units would mean 100 more cars in the area. He believes that something must be done about infrastructure in this area to prevent flooding. He informed the Council that two cars cannot pass one another on the road.
- **Jimmy Mathis** (Beason Dr.) He does not believe you can stop development. He doesn't want duplexes, but would rather see single-family in this area.

<u>Rebuttal:</u> Ms. Shephard confirmed that this development could take place now as duplexes. She noted that the requirement for duplexes is the same for single-family. She also informed the Council that the Applicant will widen the road and improve the cul de sac for more turnaround space. She responded to questions from Councilman Ledford on the steep slope area, the requirement for fire department access, and stormwater infiltration.

Councilman Henderson asked if improvements to Beason Drive could be added as a condition. Mr. Bridger also requested to submit the revised site plan to the Council Clerk.

Councilman Henderson also questioned Jeremy Swilley, construction program supervisor at LDO, whose inspectors will watch part of the construction, if approved. He informed the Council on the process to ensure that the stormwater situation is not worst due to this development. Councilman Henderson confirmed with Mr. Swilley that the greenspaces are identifiable and required to be delineated and clearly marked on the site. Mr. Swilley also described the markers that will be placed and discussed the process of a professional being able to find the greenspaces and fence. Ms. Shephard discussed the desire to clear the underbrush and make a trail with a hand tool.

Councilman Henderson He discussed the areas not having not having a neighborhood association and that many property owners in the area do not live there. He discussed the family that is most impacted by the project being in support of it. He also notedmix of those in support and in opposition. **Councilman Henderson moved** to approve with the intent to amend. He was seconded by Councilwoman Berz. The motion carried.

**Councilman Henderson moved** to amend by adding the following conditions:

- Improve Beason Drive along the adjacent property frontage
- The site plan date 12-6-18 with 51 single lots only
- Maintain an undisturbed greenspace as set out in the site plan dated 12-6-18 with construct fence in place before land disturbance.

He was seconded by Councilwoman Berz. The motion carried, with Councilman Mitchell voting "NO." Mr. Bridger requested clarification on the first condition as recommended that the language specify "along the adjacent property frontage." Councilman Henderson confirmed and agreed.

**Councilman Henderson moved** to approve as amended, seconded by Councilwoman Berz. The motion carried, with Councilman Mitchell voting "NO."

## ACTION: ADOPTED AS AMENDED

On motion of Vice-Chairman Oglesby and seconded by Councilman Ledford,

#### **RESOLUTION #29735**

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD CONTRACT NO. R-15-019-201 TO WINESETT-HILL CONSTRUCTORS, INC. FOR THE AQUARIUM BATHROOM RENOVATION PROJECT, IN THE AMOUNT OF \$442,930.00, WITH A CONTINGENCY AMOUNT OF \$44,000.00, FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$486,930.00.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilman Byrd and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

#### **RESOLUTION #29736**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 (FINAL) FOR JDH COMPANY, INC. RELATIVE TO CONTRACT NO. Y-17-007-201, REPLACEMENT ROOFING SYSTEM FOR CARVER YFD CENTER, FOR A DECREASED AMOUNT OF \$85.00, TO RELEASE THE CONTINGENCY IN THE AMOUNT OF \$20,000.00, FOR A REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT OF \$192,759.00.

**ACTION: ADOPTED** 

On motion of Councilman Byrd and seconded by Vice-Chairman Oglesby,

## **RESOLUTION #29737**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 FOR BURNS & MCDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY RELATIVE TO CONTRACT NO. W-16-013-101, CITICO PUMP STATION RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS, A CONSENT DECREE SUPPORTED PROJECT, FOR AN INCREASE IN THE CONTRACT OF \$160,080.00, FOR A REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT OF \$1,341,230.00.

**ACTION: ADOPTED** 

On motion of Councilman Henderson and seconded by Councilman Byrd,

#### **RESOLUTION #29738**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO HAMILTON COUNTY FOR THE ANNUAL CITY WORKS ASSET MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE SUPPORT FOR THE PERIOD OF NOVEMBER 11, 2018 TO NOVEMBER 10, 2019, IN THE AMOUNT OF \$34,075.01.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilman Byrd and seconded by Councilman Gilbert,

#### **RESOLUTION #29739**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHATTANOOGA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO ERECT COMMEMORATIVE SECONDARY STREET NAME SIGNS ON DODSON AVENUE FROM OCOEE STREET TO LAURA STREET DESIGNATING SAID PORTION OF DODSON AVENUE AS "JERRY MARSHALL SR. MEMORIAL PARKWAY".

Councilman Byrd requested to hear from the family of Mr. Marshall. His daughter, Tracey Wade, addressed the Council and introduced her uncle, Robert Marshall. She spoke about her father's work in the city for almost 30 years prior to his death in 2011, his impact on the lives of youth and his love for Avondale. Councilman Gilbert made comments about being rivals with Mr. Marshall's little league football teams. After comments from Councilman Byrd, the motion carried.

ACTION: ADOPTED

## **PURCHASES:**

Bonnie Woodward, Purchasing Director, briefed the Council on the following proposed purchases:

## PO 526878 - Information Technologies

Estimated \$500,000.00 Annually

New Blanket Contract Term for Multi-Function Devices (copier),

City Wide, Information Technologies

Lowest/Best Bidder: Canon Solutions America

14904 Collections Center Drive

Chicago, IL 60693

## R141922 - Department of Youth & Family Development

Estimated \$36,000.00 Annually

Blanket Contract Renewal for Cargo and Passenger

Van Rental, Department of Youth and Family Development Lowest/Best Bidder: Enterprise Rent-A-Car of Tennessee

209 Seaboard Lane Franklin, TN 37067

## R178813 - Public Works Department

Total \$38,074.75

Purchase of (10) 4 Cubic Yard Dempsey Dumpster

T2 Bail Container, Waste Resource Division, Public Works Department

Lowest/Best Bidder: Wastequip, LLC.

395 South Main Street Eagle, TN 37060

## R175564 - Public Works Department

Estimated \$525,000.00 Annually

New Blanket Contract for Joy Air Compressor Parts

& Services, Waste Resource Division, Public Works Department

Lowest/Best Bidder: Fluid Flow Products, Inc.

2108 Crown View Drive Charlotte, NC 28227

Councilwoman Berz moved to approve, seconded by Councilman Ledford. The motion carried.

## ACTION: ALL PURCHASES APPROVED

## **OTHER BUSINESS:**

## **Delta Sigma Theta**

Vice-Chairman Oglesby recognized and welcomed the members of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Inc., who were present in the Assembly today.

## **Statements on Behalf of Council**

Vice-Chairman Oglesby made a statement expressing the unified sentiment of the Council not supporting the behavior videotaped of Hamilton County Deputy Kilpatrick against citizen, Mr. Toney. He discussed the Department of Justice being contacted and Hamilton County having jurisdiction in this matter. His statements were interrupted by protestors in the Assembly. Therefore, the meeting moved to adjournment.

# **ADJOURNMENT**

On motion of Vice-Chairman Oglesby, Chairman Smith adjourned the meeting of t	he
Chattanooga City Council until Tuesday, December 18, 2018, at 6:00 p.m.	

	CHAIRMAN	
CLERK OF COUNCIL		

# **EDITOR'S NOTE:**

The Council will not meet on the following dates: December 25, 2018, and January 1, 2019.